
           

MEASURE X COMMUNITY
ADVISORY BOARD 

April 28, 2021
5:00 P.M.

VIRTUAL MEETING
The Public may observe and participate in

the Virtual Zoom Meeting by using this link:
https://cccounty-us.zoom.us/j/81176769191

Meeting ID: 811 7676 9191
Or by dialing (888) 278-0254

Conference Code: 468751
1025 Escobar St., Martinez

Mariana Moore, Chair
BK Williams, Vice Chair

Agenda
Items:

Items may be taken out of order based on the business of the day and
preference of the Committee

             

1. Introductions
 

2. Roll Call
 

3. Public comment on any item under the jurisdiction of the Committee and not on
this agenda (speakers may be limiteed to three minutes).

 

4.   CONSIDER approving the Record of Action for the April 21, 2021, Measure X
Community Advisory Board meeting (Lisa Driscoll, County Finance Director)

 

5.   DISCUSS/APPROVE operating principles for MXCAB (Mariana Moore, Chair)
 

6.   APPROVE plan for holding a series of focused presentations and discussions
at upcoming MXCAB meetings (Mariana Moore, Chair)

 

7.   RECEIVE presentation regarding the County budget and revenues (Lisa
Driscoll, County Finance Director)

 

8.   RECEIVE an overview of County needs and trends (Jamila Henderson,
PolicyLink)

 

9. The next meeting is currently scheduled for May 5, 2021.
 

10. Adjourn
 

https://cccounty-us.zoom.us/j/81176769191


 

The Measure X Community Advisory Board will provide reasonable accommodations for
persons with disabilities planning to attend Measure X meetings. Contact the staff person
listed below at least 72 hours before the meeting. 

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting
agenda and distributed by the County to a majority of members of the Measure X
Community Advsory Board less than 96 hours prior to that meeting are available for
public inspection at 1025 Escobar St., 4th Floor, Martinez, during normal business hours. 

Public comment may be submitted via electronic mail on agenda items at least one full
work day prior to the published meeting time.

For Additional Information Contact: 
Lisa Driscoll, Committee Staff

Phone (925) 655-2047
lisa.driscoll@cao.cccounty.us



MEASURE X COMMUNITY ADVISORY BOARD
Meeting Date: 04/28/2021  

Subject: Record of Action for April 21, 2021 Measure X Community Advisory
Board Meeting

Submitted For: FINANCE COMMITTEE, 
Department: County Administrator
Referral No.: N/A  

Referral Name: Record of Action 
Presenter: Lisa Driscoll, County Finance

Director
Contact: Lisa Driscoll (925)

655-2047

Referral History:
County Ordinance requires that each County body keep a record of its meetings.
Though the record need not be verbatim, it must accurately reflect the agenda and the
discussions made in the meetings.

Referral Update:
Attached for the Board's consideration is the Record of Action for its April 21, 2021
meeting.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
Staff recommends approval of the Record of Action for the April 21, 2021 meeting.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
No fiscal impact.

Attachments
Record of Action MXCAB 4-21-21
Public Comments received 4-19-21









 

 

Public Comments, MX Community Advisory Board 
April 21, 2021 
Bryan Scott, Chair, East County Voters for Equal Protection 
 

Good afternoon, Members and Alternates of the Measure X Community Advisory 
Board. My name is Bryan Scott, and I want to thank all of you for stepping up and 
participating in this essential public service. 

I especially want to thank Chairperson Moore for her previous work on Measure 
X, and for accepting the role of Chairperson on this Board.  Board Member Cruise 
also deserves a special thank you, for last week bringing up one of the most 
significant public policy issues in the County, namely, the public safety emergency 
in East County. 

As I mentioned last week, the regional fire district serving East County has 
declared an emergency, and limits its firefighting activities to defensive practices 
only.  Emergency response times in East County are two-to-three times stated 
goals, and the fire district is unable to respond, AT ALL, for significant periods of 
time each month. 

People are dying, and experiencing unnecessary injury, due to the lengthy response 
times.  Homes are burning down.  And insurance premiums for the nearly 130,000 
residents East County are increasing significantly.   

Included in this Public Comment submission is a white paper that explains the 
history of this government spending calamity, and suggests that this Community 
Board recommend to the Board of Supervisors that it dedicate 15% of the Measure 
X sales tax revenue to address this emergency situation. 

Also included, as an Appendix, is a page from a LAFCO study that states on how 
much money, on a per-resident basis, the various fire districts in the County spend 
on fire and emergency medical services.   

If anyone has any questions, or would like to talk about my public comments, or 
the documents I have submitted, feel free to contact me by email at scott-dot-
bryan-at-comcast-dot-net, or by telephone: 925-418-4428. 

Again, Thank You for your service. 

 



 

1 
 

Bryan Scott, April 21, 2020 

A Partial Timeline  

of a Public Safety Emergency 
 

Statement of Facts 

The provision of essential services to the Public is the primary purpose of government.  Special 
Districts are created within Counties, the political subdivisions of the State, to provide these 
essential services.   

Fire districts, such as the East Contra Costa Fire Protection District (ECCFPD), provide a range 
of emergency medical and fire response services to the communities served. 

In the period of 2000 through 2002, the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors (BoS) 
became aware of the decreasing level of fire and emergency medical services being provided to 
the eastern 31% of the County, an area experiencing dramatic growth.  After extensive study, the 
BoS initiated the consolidation of three existing fire districts, all Dependent Special Districts 
under its control, that were then providing services to the eastern-most 249-square miles of the 
County into one agency. 

 

Consequently, and as a result of state and local government spending policies, a huge disparity in 
public safety services has developed across the County.  The above illustration presents data 
from Page 32 of a 2016 Local Agency Formation Commission study, included as Appendix A. 

In 2002 the BoS made application for regulatory approval for the consolidation to the Contra 
Costa County Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO).  The cities of Brentwood and 



 

2 
 

Oakley filed concerns and objections to the consolidation, and the BoS responded to these 
concerns and objections. 

Included in these County responses were promises to the Public that LAFCO received, stating in 
an official report, dated July 10, 2002, “The applicant has also stated that its future plans 
include funding and service levels that will be on an equal status with the remainder of the Bay 
Area communities.”    

A second LAFCO staff report, dated August 7, 2002, stated when referring to the County, 
“that a) it intends to fully fund the required services and to ensure uniform and consistent service 
quality throughout the newly-consolidated district, and b) its future plans include funding and 
service levels that will be on an equal status with the remainder of Bay Area communities.” 

These County communications were to the Public, through the city councils of Brentwood and 
Oakley.  The East County residents, including the residents of the cities of Brentwood and 
Oakley, waited patiently for the BoS to fulfill their promises, during the entire time the ECCFPD 
was a Dependent Special District, under the control of the BoS.   

During the time between the formation of ECCFPD and the present, funding levels increased 
slowly in comparison to the dramatic growth of the region.  The need for these essential 
government services grew dramatically, as did ECCFPD’s cost of providing these services.  
Because of these divergent financial trends, the fire district staff was forced to reduce staff and 
close fire stations.   

What was a minor funding discrepancy in 2002 became a significant public safety emergency by 
2017.  By that time ECCFPD was experiencing a $13 million annual funding deficit, and the 
Public throughout the fire district’s service area was experiencing increased loss of life and 
property, as well as increased property insurance premiums.   

Published on October 21, 2015, a Fire and Medical Services Task Force “Report to Elected 
Officials” states: 

“SUMMARY FINDINGS:  1. The ECCFPD has on-going, structural financial deficiencies to the 
extent that it is unable to provide adequate fire suppression and medical response services to the 
communities in the East Contra Costa Fire Protection District.” 

On May 11, 2016, the Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO), Minutes 
of Meeting states: 

“Gil Guerrero, (ECCFPD Captain) also with IAFF Local 1230, stressed that time and staffing are 
of the essence.  Discovery Bay has lost three residents to cardiac arrest because engines were 
unavailable to respond. ECCFPD has no paramedics, no fire boat, and no ladder truck.” 

On June 15, 2016, CityGate Consultants LLC, published a consulting study for ECCFPD, 
“Deployment Performance and Headquarters Staffing Adequacy Study,” which states:    

“The District cannot meet its needs through its own fire response resources, and is dependent on 
its neighbors in the regional mutual aid system for assistance on serious, not just catastrophic 



 

3 
 

emergencies.  The District’s deployment system does not meet the risks in Brentwood and 
Oakley if the fire Department is expected to prevent more than a catastrophic loss.  The District 
is the most under-deployed and administratively understaffed fire department we have seen in 
over a decade for the size of the communities to be protected.”   (Emphasis added) 

In April, 2017, Assembly Member Jim Frazier’s Field Director, Erica Rodriguez-Langley, in a 
statement to the Brentwood City Council, said: 

“Assemblyman Frazier … believes that East Contra Costa Fire Protection District is facing a 
fiscal emergency, and that we have a public safety emergency.  He is concerned … that 
additional station closures are not far off, and that we need to find additional resources to 
continue to sustain what we have.”  

Published on March 27, 2018, an East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Press Release, 
titled “East Contra Costa Fire’s Critical Infrastructure Update & Next Steps,” states: 

“Although the District is not able to provide service levels that adequately protect the 
community's residents at this time, we are well on our way to building a solid foundation from 
which service levels can be efficiently increased when the residents move to provide additional 
revenue.” 

The region’s lack of these essential services is further documented in LAFCO Municipal 
Services Reviews and County Grand Jury reports. 

 

The Relative Issues 

Fire districts in California are funded primarily with property taxes.  Because of the estimated 
1,500% population growth the eastern Contra Costa County region has experienced, and the 
inflexibility of the state-mandated property tax funds distribution methodology, the region’s 
emergency medical and fire services are increasingly under-funded.   

The California Legislature, in its Health and Safety Code, has declared “that the local provision 
of fire protection services, rescue services, emergency medical services, hazardous material 
emergency response services, ambulance services, and other services relating to the protection of 
lives and property is critical to the public peace, health, and safety of the state.” 

The County, as a political subdivision of the State, bears responsibility for the equitable 
distribution of state benefits to residents.  Both the United States and California Constitutions 
provide for the equal protection of citizens.  Citizens comparably situated must legally be treated 
comparably, and this is not the case when comparing residents of the eastern 31% of the County 
and the rest of the County.   

The elements of a promissory estoppel claim in California are (1) a promise clear and 
unambiguous in its terms; (2) reliance by the party to whom the promise is made; (3) [the] 
reliance must be both reasonable and foreseeable; and (4) the party asserting the estoppel must 
be injured by this reliance. 



 

4 
 

During communications leading up to the fire district consolidation approval, the County made 
promises to the Public.  The Public has relied on these promises, and it was “reasonable and 
foreseeable” that the Public would do so.  The Public is and continues to be injured by this 
reliance. 

Using the largest fire district in the County, the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District, as 
a benchmark, it has been calculated that an annual funding deficit of about $13 million exists.   

 

The Relief Sought 

The Public is asking the Measure X Community Advisory Board to recommend that the County 
and the BoS perform, as promised in 2002.  Justice requires that the funding for public safety 
services in eastern Contra Costa County be increased by an amount in the range of $11 million to 
$13 million annually.  This translates to roughly 15% of the expected $81 million of Measure X 
revenue. 

Promissory Estoppel is a legal doctrine in which one party has an obligation to fulfill its 
obligations, as per the terms of a contract, in order to prevent another party from experiencing 
injustice or losses.  

Equal Protection Under the Law is a constitutional provision which ensures all citizens are 
treated in a similar fashion, given similar situations. 

The BoS has an obligation to improve the level of emergency medical and fire services funding 
in East County, so that all residents of Contra Costa County receive a comparable level of 
essential government services.  The Measure X Community Advisory Board has a duty to 
recommend that the BoS fulfill its promises, so that all residents of the county equally receive 
comparable services.  





MEASURE X COMMUNITY
ADVISORY BOARD
Meeting Date: 04/28/2021  

Subject: Operating Principles for the Measure X Community Advisory
Board

Submitted For: MEASURE X Com Advisory Board, 
Department: County Administrator
Referral No.: 2/2/21 D.4  

Referral Name: Community Advisory Committee for Measure X 
Presenter: Mariana Moore Contact: Lisa Driscoll, County Finance

Director (925) 655-2047

Referral History:
DISCUSS/APPROVE operating principles for MXCAB.

Referral Update:
Continued discussion from meeting of 4/21/21.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
ADOPT attached operating principles.

Attachments
MXCAB Operating Principles



Agenda Item 4      4/28/21

Measure X Community Advisory Board
Operating principles

VISION STATEMENT

Contra Costa County will have the necessary funds to invest in and sustain a robust system of
care and the social and public services necessary to support a vibrant community and ensure
that all county residents have equitable opportunities to thrive.

OPERATING PRINCIPLES

Assumptions and commitments that inform our work together:

1. Shared responsibility to practice the values of equity, justice, inclusion and compassion.

2. Sustaining a strong social safety net is important for the health and prosperity of all.

3. Investments will prioritize prevention as well as addressing current system gaps.

4. Investments will help leverage other funding sources when feasible.

5. Needs and issues are intersectional and interconnected. Think about needs and services
from the point of view of residents.

6. Name inequities and disparities, and be specific in naming and recognizing those who are
most harmed by them, especially Black and Latinx residents, disabled people and poor
people.

7. Economic opportunity and equity are at the heart of our purpose.

8. Seek transformative solutions, in addition to filling current service gaps.

9. Fostering a culture of inclusion, welcoming, and belonging demonstrates our commitment
to equity and will improve our work process and outcomes.

How we conduct ourselves in meetings:

1. Consider not repeating a point someone else has already made (or briefly agree).

2. Treat each other and all participants with mutual respect.

3. Be curious; practice active listening; seek to understand.

4. To fully embody our principle of inclusion: Support the accessibility needs of all
participants to the extent feasible, including language access (interpretation and
translation), technical support, and visual/audio support.



MEASURE X COMMUNITY
ADVISORY BOARD
Meeting Date: 04/28/2021  

Subject: Plan for Series of Focused Presentations and Discussion
Submitted For: MEASURE X Com Advisory Board, 
Department: County Administrator
Referral No.: 2/2/21 D.4  

Referral Name: Community Advisory Committee for Measure X 
Presenter: Mariana Moore Contact: Lisa Driscoll, County Finance

Director (925) 655-2047

Referral History:
Item was introduced at the April 21, 2021, MXCAB meeting (item #6).

Referral Update:
Formal plan was requested for the April 28, 2021 meeting.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
Approve attached plan.

Attachments
Proposed presentation, Topics, schedule, and format



Agenda item 5        MXCAB April 28, 2021

Measure X Community Advisory Board
Proposed presentation schedule, topics and format

MEETING
DATE

TOPIC(S) PRESENTER(S)

April 28 County budget overview
Overview of county needs/trends

Lisa Driscoll
PolicyLink (TBC)

May 5 Healthcare

May 12 Mental and behavioral health

May 19 Safety net (jobs/income, public
benefits, etc.)

May 26 Housing & homelessness

June 2 Early childhood

June 9 Youth, young adults

June 16 Seniors

June 23 Community safety: justice systems

June 30 Community safety: fire protection

July 7 Immigration
Racial equity across systems

July 14 Develop draft priorities &
recommendations

July 21 Finalize priorities &
recommendations to submit to BOS



Agenda item 5        MXCAB April 28, 2021

Presentation format:
● Panel of speakers (up to 5) includes county staff, community-based organizations,

issue-specific experts, and residents with lived experience of the need or issue being
discussed

● Each panelist has up to 10 minutes to present
● Questions/discussion with MXCAB members and alternates (20-30 min.)
● Public comment

Panelist guidance:
● For service providers/issue expertis (county and community-based):

○ County staff: Brief explanation of county services/structure
○ Limited number of data points that demonstrate the core issue/needs

■ Disaggregate data by race/ethnicity whenever possible
■ Name and focus on populations that are most underserved (race/ethnicity,

geographic area, ability, gender, sexual orientation, age, etc.)
○ Trends: What is emerging or changing, and what are the implications?
○ Gaps: What are the 2-3 most significant unmet needs in this issue area?
○ Prevention: What more can be done to help residents avoid being in crisis

around this need/issue?
○ Bold ideas: What bold experiments or innovative steps could we take to meet

these key needs?
○ Success: What will success look like if Measure X is successful in funding in this

issue/need?
● For resident speakers:

○ What has your experience of this need/issue/system been like? What has worked
well? What hasn’t?

○ What do county- and community-based service providers need to understand to
make these systems work better?

○ What would you most like to see happen in this county over the coming year that
would improve your well-being and opportunity to thrive?

○ What will success look like if Measure X is successful in funding in this
issue/need?



MEASURE X COMMUNITY ADVISORY
BOARD
Meeting Date: 04/28/2021  

Subject: Budget and Revenue Presentation
Submitted For: MEASURE X Com Advisory Board, 
Department: County Administrator
Referral No.: 2/2/21 D.4  

Referral Name: Community Advisory Committee for Measure X 
Presenter: Lisa Driscoll, County

Finance Director
Contact: Lisa Driscoll, County Finance

Director (925) 655-2047

Referral History:
At the Finance Committee meeting of March 29, 2021, Supervisor Gioia requested that
staff present a budget presentation to the MXCAB. Due to the timing of the County
Budget Hearings staff was unable to provide the presentation on 4/21/21.

Referral Update:
At the meeting of 4/21/21, Mariana Moore requested that staff present a budget
presentation at the 4/28/21 meeting of the MXCAB.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
Receive attached report.

Attachments
FY 2021-22 Recommended Budget 101 (corrected)



FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 RECOMMENDED 
BUDGET 101

April 28, 2021
1



Topics for Today
• County Profile
• Budget Mandates
• Budget Process
• Where to find the 

County Financial 
Information

• Measure X Sales Tax 
Projections

2



Contra Costa County Profile

• Contra Costa County was incorporated in 1850 as one of the original 27 
counties of California.  

• A five‐member Board of Supervisors, each elected to four‐year terms, 
serves as the legislative body of the County, which has a general law form 
of government.  

• Also elected are the County Assessor, Auditor‐Controller (the ‘County 
Auditor‐Controller’), Clerk‐Recorder, District Attorney, Sheriff‐Coroner and 
Treasurer‐Tax Collector (the ‘County Treasurer’).  

• The County Administrator, Monica Nino, is appointed by the Board and is 
responsible for running the day‐to‐day business of the County.  The County 
Administrator is also responsible for presenting the Board with a 
Recommended Budget for consideration of adoption as the Final 
(Adopted) Budget, which will serve as the foundation of the County’s 
financial planning and control.  3



Employment by Industry
Annual Averages – Ranked for 2019

4

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019    x

Wage & Salary Employment

Educational & Health Services 64,100 67,300 69,300 70,700 71,200 19.0%

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 62,500 64,900 65,200 64,200 62,200 16.6%

Professional & Business Services 50,900 52,100 54,300 55,300 56,200 15.0%

Government 49,300 50,400 50,500 50,800 50,800 13.6%

Leisure & Hospitality 38,300 40,500 40,700 41,300 43,300 11.6%

Goods Producing 37,800 40,200 41,100 41,800 42,100 11.2%

Financial Activities 26,300 27,000 27,400 27,000 27,200 7.3%

Other Services 12,700 13,000 13,000 13,500 13,600 3.6%

Information 8,300 8,100 8,000 7,800 7,200 1.9%

Farm 700 800 800 700 800 0.2%

Source: State of California, Employment Development Department, Labor Market Information Division, March 2020 Benchmark



Principal Employers: Current and Eleven Years Ago
(Excluding Government Employers)

5

1) Source: State of California Employment Development Department, June 2020
(2) Source: Rich’s everyday Sales Prospecting Directory (2009) – Contra Costa County

2020(1) 2009(2)

Employer
Estimated 
Employees

Estimated
Employees Rank

Chevron Corporation 10,000+ 4,700 1
La Raza Market 1,000 - 4,999
Martinez Medical Offices 1,000 - 4,999
Kaiser Permanente 1,000 - 4,999 1,700 2
John Muir Medical Center 1,000 - 4,999 1,900 3
Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc. 1,000 - 4,999 2,300 4
USS-POSCO Industries 1,000 - 4,999 975 8
St. Mary's College of California 1,000 - 4,999
Job Connections 1,000 - 4,999
John Muir/Mt. Diablo Medical Center 1,500 5
24-hour Fitness 1,300 6
Doctors Medical Center 1,000 7
Contra Costa Newspapers, Inc. 900 9
Bank of the West 800 10
All Others 439,500 456,725

Total 473,500 473,800



Budget 
Mandates

• County budgets are not easy to compare.  
As a General Law County, Contra Costa has 
more restrictions than a Charter County 
and therefore has less revenue generating 
authority than other counties.  

• Contra Costa also operates a hospital.  Most 
California county hospitals have closed due 
to lack of funding. 

• Contra Costa has mandated functions, 
which it is required to provide, regardless of 
funding.  Some of these functions are 
mandated, but the service level is not.

• Functions identified as ‘discretionary’ are 
often those most desired by the 
community. Homeless programs, Meals on 
Wheels/senior nutrition, child abuse, 
disaster planning, administration, economic 
development, and veterans services as 
examples.

• The annual budget book has two thorough 
listings of County programs by discretionary 
level.  One is sorted by department and the 
other by service and level.

6



Not 
within 
the 
County’s 
Purview

7

Schools

Courts

City police 
departments



Budget Process

8



‘Normal Budget Process’
The County budget process is a continuous cycle of developing, monitoring and 
planning, with specific steps each year to achieve adoption of the Final Budget

9

Budget 
Monitoring & 

Planning

(continuous 
cycle)

JANUARY

Budget Year Key Issues & 
Projections at Board of 

Supervisors' Retreat

FEBRUARY

Baseline Budgets due from 
Departments

FEBRUARY

Current Budget Mid-Year 
Financial Status

FEBRUARY

Budget Year Baseline Budget 
Report

FEBRUARY/MARCH
Budget Narratives & 

Administrative/Program Goals 
due from Departments

EARLY APRIL

Recommended Budget to 
Board and Public

MID APRIL

Budget Hearings

JULY

Fiscal Year Begins

SEPTEMBER

Budget Adjustments & 
Adoption of Final Budget

Opportunity for public 
comment/input



Financial 
Information

10



County Finance 
website Includes:
https://www.cont
racosta.ca.gov/75
6/Financial‐
Information

• Budget Information

• Learn about the budget process and review current year 
and past years' budget documents.

• Debt Information

• Read about Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRANs), 
Bonds and other County debt.

• Financial Policies

• Access current County policies regarding budget, 
investment, reserves, debt, and workers compensation.

• Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)

• Learn about OPEB, read Board Orders & reports 
regarding how Contra Costa is handling the OPEB 
liability.

• PARS Public Agencies Post Retirement Health Care Plan 
Trust Agreement

• Access current County policies, reports, meeting 
information and materials.

• Pension

• Learn about County Pension issues and changes.

• Sales Tax

• Access Sales Tax information for Contra Costa County.

• Board Administered Special Revenues

• See a list of Board Administered Special Revenues

11



County Auditor 
website Includes:
https://www.cont
racosta.ca.gov/65
43/Divisions

• Administration / Systems Support
To provide general management of the financial information 
and accounts of all departments, districts, and other agencies 
governed by the Board of Supervisors.

• Property Tax
To build the countywide tax roll and allocate and account for 
property tax apportionments and assessments for all 
jurisdictions in the County.

• Payroll
To process payroll for all County departments, most fire 
districts, some special districts, and some non‐county regional 
agencies.

• General Accounting / Accounts Payable
To manage the countywide Financial System and process 
various types of fiscal information for county departments, 
special districts, and other non‐county agencies. To maintain 
the general ledger. To enforce accounting policies, procedures, 
and processes.

• Internal Audit
To develop and execute audit programs for the examination, 
verification, and analysis of financial records, procedures, and 
internal controls of the county departments.

• Special Accounting
To assist in preparing the budget documents for the County 
and special districts, including monitoring expenditures for 
budget compliance. To prepare the countywide Cost Allocation 
Plan.

12



Difference between a Budget and the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report (CAFR)

13

CAFR shows where 
we have been –
Rearview Window

Budget shows where 
we are going –
Windshield



14



The Recommended Budget as 
printed does not include ANY 
Financial/Programmatic 
Impacts of COVID‐19

15



What it does 
include is over 
680 pages of easy 
to access(pdf 
searchable) 
information:

• A Budget Message,
• An overview of the County including a County 

Profile, historical perspective, and Org chart,
• Detailed descriptions of programs operated by the 

County from Airports to Zoning 
• In‐depth discussion of major revenue sources
• Changes in Projected Fund balance, history, and 

definitions
• Capital Improvement Projects
• Current Debt Position
• Financial Policies
• List of programmatic changes from the previous 

budget
• Standing Committees of the Board, Advisory 

Bodies, etc.
• Mandatory/discretionary listings by program
• Fund definitions
• Budgetary Fund Structure
• Table of Funds
• Glossary of Acronyms & Terms
• Subject Index
• and more 16



17



18



Recommended Budget FY 2021/22

• Began with position allocations as of 1/1/21
• Projected salaries & benefits based upon FY 2021/22 data 
• Thoroughly reviewed all revenues – for the most part increased 
revenues

• Updated allocations for occupancy, telephone, data processing, 
etc.

• Increased or decreased positions based upon funding available
• Finalized Recommended Schedules
• Long‐term impact of COVID‐19 beginning to emerge 

19



FY 2021‐22 Recommended Sources

20

Hospital/Health Plan 
Revenue
36.82%

Intergovernmental Revenue
28.56%

Miscellaneous Revenue
11.98%

Taxes Current Property
11.86%

Charges for Services
5.37%

Enterprise Fund Subsidy
1.90%

Fund Balance (net)
0.98%

Licenses, Permits and 
Franchises

0.81%

Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties
0.70% Taxes Other Than Current Property

0.66%

Use of Money and Property
0.36%

Source of Funds Recommended 
FY 2021-22

Percent 
of Total

Hospital/Health Plan Revenue $1,495,307,000 36.82%
Intergovernmental Revenue 1,160,012,500 28.56%
Miscellaneous Revenue 486,628,500 11.98%
Taxes Current Property 481,748,000 11.86%
Charges for Services 218,049,525 5.37%
Enterprise Fund Subsidy 77,231,000 1.90%
Fund Balance (net) 39,684,000 0.98%
Licenses, Permits and Franchises 32,697,000 0.81%
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties 28,570,145 0.70%
Taxes Other Than Current Property 26,920,000 0.66%
Use of Money and Property 14,407,380 0.36%

TOTAL RECOMMENDED 
SOURCES $4,061,255,050 100.00%



Appropriations by Function
FY 2021‐22

21

General Government, 
621,700,000, 15%

Health & Human Services, 
2,870,197,500, 71%

Law & Justice, 
569,357,550, 14%

County Funds 
(Excluding Special 

Districts)

General 
Government

Health & Human 
Services Law & Justice

Expense

Salaries And Benefits 1,612,311,500  239,453,500  984,420,000  388,438,000 
Services And Supplies 1,662,530,224  298,318,500  1,303,807,500  60,404,224 
Other Charges 547,985,050  122,104,000  398,247,000  27,634,050 
Fixed Assets 48,256,000  30,628,000  14,537,000  3,091,000 
Provisions For Contingencies 10,000,000  10,000,000  0 
Net Expenditure Transfers 180,172,276  (78,804,000) 169,186,000  89,790,276 
Expense Total 4,061,255,050  621,700,000  2,870,197,500  569,357,550 

Revenue

Other Local Revenue 1,169,942,230  361,743,832  656,656,553  151,541,845 
Federal Assistance 418,879,724  59,983,871  356,025,296  2,870,557 
State Assistance 1,903,749,096  45,642,297  1,669,190,651  188,916,148 
General Purpose Revenue 529,000,000  116,550,000  188,325,000  224,125,000 
Revenue Total 4,021,571,050  583,920,000  2,870,197,500  567,453,550 

Net Fund Cost (NFC): 39,684,000  37,780,000  0  1,904,000 

Allocated Positions (FTE) 9,577.0  1,576.1  6,117.3  1,883.6 



Appropriations by State Code

22

All Funds: 
$4.06 Billion

General Fund: 
$1.85 Billion

General, 
$234,330,000 , 6%

Public Protection, 
$688,356,550 , 17%

Health & Sanitation, 
$2,128,641,500 , 

53%

Public Assistance, 
$742,649,000 , 18%

Education, 
$36,111,000 , 1%

Public Ways & Facilities, 
$171,025,000 , 4%

Debt Service, 
$50,142,000 , 1% Appropriations for Contingencies, 

$10,000,000 , <1%

General, 
$209,424,000 , 

11%

Public Protection, 
$523,736,000 , 28%

Health & Sanitation, 
$500,514,500 , 27%

Public Assistance, 
$561,069,000 , 30%

Public Ways & 
Facilities, …

Appropriations for 
Contingencies, $10,000,000 , 

1%



General Purpose Revenue 
Projected $529 Million

23



General Fund Revenue ‐ $1.853 Billion

24

General Purpose, 
$529,000,000 , 29%

Other Local Revenue, 
$547,444,143 , 29%

Federal, 
$334,769,853 , 18%

State Assistance, 
$442,374,504 , 24%



General Fund Appropriations $1.853 Billion

25

Salaries and Benefits, 
$1,027,636,500, 55.4%

Expenditure Transfers, -
$144,119,000, (7.8%)

Fixed Assets, 
$22,146,000, 1.2%

Services and Supplies, 
$634,233,000, 34.2%

Other Charges, 
$303,692,000, 16.4%

Provisions for Contingencies, 
$10,000,000, 0.50%

Health & Human Services, 
1,058,739,500, 57%

General Government, 
320,785,000, 17%

Law & Justice, 474,064,000, 
26%



Net County 
Cost

• Net County cost is an Agency’s 
share of general purpose 
revenue

• Non‐General Fund Departments 
have a net Fund cost.

• The total net County cost of all 
general fund agencies is the 
total general purpose revenue  
(if the budget is balanced) – if 
there is a difference – that 
remainder is either fund 
balance or reserve use 

26



Where is the 
net County 
cost?  9  
Departments 
receive 
85.5% of the 
General 
Purpose
Revenue, 
and 2 receive 
over half

27



All Fund ‐ Position Summary

28

  
  2018-19 

Actuals   
2019-20 
Actuals   

2020-21 
Budget   

2021-22 
Baseline   

2021-22 
Recommended   

Net 
Change 

County Departments                       
  Agriculture-Weights/Measures 44.6   45.6   44.3   44.3   44.3   0.0  
  Animal Services 77.0   77.0   71.0   71.0   71.0   0.0  
  Assessor 122.0   112.0   112.0   112.0   112.0   0.0  
  Auditor-Controller 60.0   60.0   60.0   60.0   60.0   0.0  
  Board Of Supervisors 32.3   31.8   31.8   31.8   31.8   0.0  
  Central Support Services 44.0   43.0   43.0   43.0   43.0   0.0  
  Child Support Services 144.0   152.0   143.0   134.0   134.0   0.0  
  Clerk-Recorder Elections 82.5   81.5   81.5   81.5   81.5   0.0  
  Conservation & Development 177.0   189.0   188.0   191.0   191.0   0.0  
  County Administrator 34.0   36.3   33.3   34.6   34.6   0.0  
  County Counsel 52.0   52.0   52.0   52.0   52.0   0.0  
  Dept of Information Technology 84.0   85.0   88.0   88.0   90.0   2.0  
  District Attorney 221.5   223.6   225.6   225.6   226.6   1.0  
  Employ’t and Human Services 1,902.5   1,852.0   1,872.0   1,900.0   1,900.0   0.0  
  Health Services 3,917.1   3,879.7   3,987.5   4,041.4   4,075.8   34.4  
  Human Resources 52.0   51.0   50.0   50.0   50.0   0.0  
  Justice System Dev/Planning 5.0   5.0   5.0   5.0   5.0   0.0  
  Library 200.7   204.3   194.5   192.5   192.5   0.0  
  Probation 367.5   330.5   334.5   338.5   338.5   0.0  
  Public Defender 137.1   145.0   145.0   145.0   145.0   0.0  
  Public Works 542.8   549.0   550.0   550.0   559.0   9.0  
  Sheriff-Coroner 1,058.5   1,062.5   1,087.5   1,087.5   1,097.5   10.0  
  Treasurer-Tax Collector 29.5   30.5   30.5   30.5   30.5   0.0  
  Veterans Service 9.5   10.0   11.0   11.5   11.5   0.0  
  Total County FTE 9,397.0  9,308.2   9,440.9   9,520.6   9,577.0   56.4  

Special Districts           
  CCC Fire District-Consolidated 397.6   413.6    418.6    418.6    422.6    4.0  
  CCCFPD Ems Transport Fund 11.0   12.0    13.0    13.0    13.0    0.0  
  Special Districts (Not Fire) 17.0   17.0    17.0    17.0    17.0    0.0  
             

 All Funds FTE 9,822.6  9,750.8    9,889.5    9,969.2    10,029.6    60.4  
 



General Fund ‐ Position Summary

29

 2018-19  2019-20  2020-21  2021-22  2021-22  Net   
 Actuals  Actuals  Budget  Baseline  Recommended  Change 

General Fund Departments                       
Agriculture-Weights/Measures 44.6    45.6  44.3  44.3  44.3  0.0 
Animal Services 77.0    77.0  71.0  71.0  71.0  0.0 
Assessor 122.0    112.0  112.0  112.0  112.0  0.0 
Auditor-Controller 60.0    60.0  60.0  60.0  60.0  0.0 
Board Of Supervisors 32.3    31.8  31.8  31.8  31.8  0.0 
Central Support Services 44.0    43.0  43.0  43.0  43.0  0.0 
Clerk-Recorder Elections 71.5    70.5  70.5  70.5  70.5  0.0 
Conservation & Development 3.0    5.0  4.0  4.0  4.0  0.0 
County Administrator 34.0    36.3  33.3  34.6  34.6  0.0 
County Counsel 52.0    52.0  52.0  52.0  52.0  0.0 
Dept Of Information Tech 84.0    85.0  88.0  88.0  90.0  2.0 
District Attorney 221.5    223.6  225.6  225.6  226.6  1.0 
Employ’ and Human Svc 1,792.5    1,751.0  1,769.0  1,803.0  1,803.0  0.0 
Health Services 1,385.7    1413.7  1,455.3  1468.9  1,503.3  34.4 
Human Resources 52.0    51.0  50.0  50.0  50.0  0.0 
Justice System Dev/Planning 5.0    5.0  5.0  5.0  5.0  0.0 
Probation 367.5    330.5  334.5  338.5  338.5  0.0 
Public Defender 137.1    145.0  145.0  145.0  145.0  0.0 
Public Works 504.8    510.0  511.0  511.0  517.0  6.0 
Sheriff-Coroner 1,035.5    1,039.5  1,064.5  1,064.5  1,074.5  10.0 
Treasurer-Tax Collector 29.5    30.5  30.5  30.5  30.5  0.0 
Veterans Service 9.5    10.0  11.0  11.5  11.5  0.0 
Total General Fund FTEs 6,165.0    6,128.0  6,211.3  6,264.7  6,318.1  53.4 
 



Homeless/Mental Health/Housing 
from all Sources ‐ $439.3 Million

30

$2.87 Billion on Health and Human Services, including $411.8 million on services directly 
related to homeless; mental health, and housing. And, an additional $27.5 million in 
homeless housing and wraparound services directly related to COVID‐19 assuming current 
level of programming continues in FY 2021/22.

FY 2021/22 Recommended Budget COVID‐19 Non‐Congregate Shelter

Appropriations Federal/State General Fund Annualized 
Expenditures

Unidentified 
Funding FEMA Funding*

Homeless $76,937,245  $68,977,305  $7,959,940  $8,640,291  $6,480,218  $2,160,073 

Mental Health $270,031,451  $240,203,234  $29,828,217  $0  $0  $0 

Housing $47,125,120  $46,284,653  $840,467  $0  $0  $0 

Homeless/Housing $17,736,719  $15,452,719  $2,284,000  $18,845,721  $14,134,291  $4,711,430 

Total $411,830,535  $370,917,911  $40,912,624  $27,486,012  $20,614,509  $6,871,503 



This is 
what is 
happening 
now

• Anticipating State Budget 
Impacts by Program

• Carefully reviewing potential 
impacts on all revenues

• Working closely with 
departments to retain 
balanced budgets

• Anticipating American 
Recovery Act Guidance

• Projecting COVID costs/ 
impacts going forward

31



Exposure to Recommended Budget

• State Budget – May Revise – Unknown

• Cumulative effect of wage increases coupled with significant increases to benefits 
may exceed projected revenues and stress future year budgets

• California Nurses Association contract expires September 30, 2021, previous 
contract has an on‐going annual cost of $36 million

• Additional funding requests from Departments and the public in the next few years 
are likely to be more than can be provided from current general purpose revenues. 
Those approved by the Board of Supervisors will likely be funded with Measure X 
funds

• COVID costs

• Without alternative funding sources or service delivery models, maintaining services 
in the County Hospital and clinics may force us to identify service level reductions in 
other County departments to maintain a structurally balanced budget

32



What is and Isn’t 
Included in the 

Recommendation 
Budget:

Included:
• $10.0 million contingency
• $7.5 million in additional staff costs for mental 

health services in the jails (40.6 FTE)
• $1.2 million for Administration Building Security
• $600,000 for the Office of Racial Equity and Social 

Justice

Not Included:
• $15.3 million for the New Finance System 

(anticipate funding with one‐time reserves)
• $2.0 million in healthcare reopener costs 

(anticipate individual departments absorbing)
• $1.6 million for Detention Security Cameras 

(anticipate funding with current year dollars)
• $300,000 for Redistricting costs are not included in 

the recommended appropriations
• COVID Costs
• Unknown costs associated with labor negotiations

33



Measure X Sales Tax 
Revenue Projection

• We are basing our estimates on Measure J CCTA (below) 
because they are very similar taxes

34



Questions?

35



MEASURE X COMMUNITY ADVISORY
BOARD
Meeting Date: 04/28/2021  

Subject: Overview of County Needs and Trends
Submitted For: MEASURE X Com Advisory Board, 
Department: County Administrator
Referral No.: 2/2/21 D.4  

Referral Name: Measure X Community Advisory Board 
Presenter: Jamila Henderson,

PolicyLink
Contact: Lisa Driscoll, County Finance

Director (925) 655-2047

Referral History:
Item was introduced at the April 21, 2021, MXCAB meeting (item #7).

Referral Update:
Attached report.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
Receive attached report from PolicyLink.

Attachments
Bay Area Equity Atlas - Advancing Equitable Recovery in Contra Costa County




























	Agenda
	4_Record of Action for April 21, 2021 Measure X Community Advisory Board Meeting
	4_ATT_Record of Action MXCAB 4-21-21
	4_ATT_Public Comments received 4-19-21
	5_Operating Principles for the Measure X Community Advisory Board
	5_ATT_MXCAB Operating Principles
	6_Plan for Series of Focused Presentations and Discussion
	6_ATT_Proposed presentation, Topics, schedule, and format
	7_Budget and Revenue Presentation
	7_ATT_FY 2021-22 Recommended Budget 101 (corrected)
	8_Overview of County Needs and Trends
	8_ATT_Bay Area Equity Atlas - Advancing Equitable Recovery in Contra Costa County

